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West Lothian College

PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 July 2020
Purpose

The Performance analysis provides a detailed performance summary and analysis of
how West Lothian College measures its performance.

Principal and Chief Executive’s Statement

This report reflects a year of two very different parts — the seven months before
lockdown and the five months during lockdown.

In the seven months pre-lockdown the college was well on track for another successful
year. Continuing a trend of growing demand for places at West Lothian College
enrolments for everything except part time FE courses increased in 2019-20 over the
previous year. Part time FE enrolments would also have increased had it not been for
lockdown. Credit-funded full time student enrolments in 2020-21 have held up and
early signs on part time enrolments are positive.

The college was continuing to make progress on improving student success. For
example, the number of early withdrawals from full time courses significantly reduced.
Factors that had contributed to very good improvements in the previous year were
continuing in 2019-20. One area that led to improved retention and success in 2018-
19 and was on track to have a positive impact on 2019-20 was enhanced industry and
work experience for students.

The academic year started with 400 students taking part in our inaugural Interrupt19
digital conference to learn about new technology developments from leading industry
experts. This was the first large-scale digital conference of its kind in Scotland that
was aimed specifically at college computing students and school pupils. The other
unigue aspect of Interruptl9 was that it was a festival for students run by students,
with our HNC Events students responsible for running the event, and our Media and
Communications students capturing the proceedings on digital and social media.

HNC Events students also helped run The Gathering 2020, the biggest annual event
for the third sector in Scotland hosted by the Scottish Council for Voluntary
Organisations. Three Professional Cookery students were awarded Hospitality
Industry Trust Scotland scholarships and forty students competed in a number of
cooking competitions at the Hotel, Restaurant and Catering industry convention in
London, winning a total of 27 medals.

We welcomed two government ministers to the college during the year. Marie Todd
MSP, Minister for Children and Young People, visited our forest classroom in
September 2019 to learn how we are integrating outdoor learning into our childhood
practice curriculum, and about our initiatives to encourage boys and men into early
years. In March 2020 Richard Lochhead MSP, Minister for Further Education, Higher
Education and Science met apprentices, lecturers and companies that work closely
with us when he launched the national STEM progress report on a visit to the college.

Excellence of our students and staff was acknowledged by being invited to represent
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the college and the sector at national events. SVQ Social Services graduate and co-
founder of Aid and Abet, Kevin Neary spoke along with a government minister at the
Colleges Scotland parliamentary reception about adverse childhood experiences, the
transformational role of colleges and how he achieved his first ever qualification at
West Lothian College that year. One of our hospitality lecturers and two Level 5
Professional Cookery students spoke at the College Development Network national
conference, Enhancing the Student Experience: Enabling Attainment, about how
international work placements help improve student attainment. Our Childhood
Practice team co-presented a workshop with the Scottish Funding Council at the UK
Men in Early Years conference and at a college sector event in Stirling.

In response to West Lothian Community Planning Partnership’s call to action to
partners to tackle global climate change, we held a whole-college Sustainability
Summit. On that day college staff and students set aside normal activities and focused
on generating ideas on how we could reduce our carbon footprint. It was a great
success with a mini-conference featuring TedX speakers, a marketplace for
sustainable businesses to showcase their products, and activities to help staff and
students to identify ways to make the college more sustainable. At the Summit we
announced that the college would from that day be a single-use plastic free college.

The college continued to develop new strategic partnerships with employers in 2019-
20, for example the Winchburgh Development project, Morrison’s Construction, and
Catalent. A large number of STEM events with primary and secondary school pupils
took place over the year, in partnership with the Developing the Young Workforce
regional group, companies like Sky and charities such as SmartSTEMs. Some of these
events were aimed specifically at attracting girls into STEM.

Priorities for 2019-20

Our priorities for 2019-20 were determined following extensive consultation with staff,
our Student Association, employers, West Lothian Council and our board of governors.
The main themes that emerged were that the college should:

e Provide more entry level courses, and deliver more in our communities

e Enhance our work with schools and raise the profile of the college

e Ensure all courses are relevant to industry and economic sectors, and be flexible
in how, where and when we deliver

e Modernise our resources and make more use of digital technologies in learning.

Very good progress was made on each of these areas over the year. Student feedback
heavily influenced the allocation of college resources in 2019-20. Feedback from over
a thousand students in the first self evaluation exercise in late 2019 identified three
further priorities.

First, although students recognised and welcomed the major investment made in
2018-19 by the college in its digital infrastructure, there were still some computers that
needed to be upgraded, the WiFi connection was poor in some parts of the campus,
and there was a lack of computers available for loan. We expanded our digital
infrastructure in 2019-20 by upgrading our WiFi network, making significant investment
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in laptops for staff and students, mobile classrooms, iPads, classroom desktop
computers and audiovisual equipment.

Second, engineering students were concerned that they needed to travel off site as
there is no welding equipment available on campus to support their courses.
Responding to these concerns, the college put in place plans to expand workshop
space and install welding booths. Unfortunately, lockdown halted this project in March
2020. However, it has resumed in the current academic year and these facilities should
be in place by August 2021.

Finally, students told us that our library was not big enough, that there are no flexible
learning spaces for individual or group work, and no quiet spaces to study. There is
increasing evidence on the impact that physical spaces has on students’ learning
experience and attainment. Flexible learning and collaborative spaces that make the
most of educational technology enable the physical environment to accommodate
different learning styles. Our twenty-year old campus was never designed for the
volume of full time students we now have. Neither was it designed to support adaptable
in-between learning spaces in our buildings. Major refurbishment of the ground floor
of our main building is planned for summer 2021 to create a modern learning resource
centre and flexible, technology-enabled learning spaces.

Staff Engagement

Regular engagement with staff is very important to me and | achieved this through all-
staff conferences in August 2019 and February 2020, consultation meetings in
January, face-to-face drop-in sessions in September and February, and online drop-
in sessions in May and June. The 2019 August staff conference, and development
week that followed, had a digital theme and offered a wide range of excellent training
opportunities. Our February 2020 staff conference focused on coping with turbulent
times, financial sustainability and continuous improvement. Both events benefited
from external speakers from the private and education sectors.

At the start of lockdown, the college donated all PPE supplies to key workers, personal
hygiene products to intensive care patients in local hospitals, and prepared our
campus to be set up as a NHS Lothian COVID19 testing centre from April to August.
Some of our employees returned to their former health practitioner roles, and staff and
students volunteered to support the NHS, key workers and local communities.

Lecturers, support staff and managers adapted very well to remote working, using
technology to communicate with teams and students, deliver lectures and tutorials,
provide pastoral, learning and mental health support, and carry out assessments. Our
IT staff helped prepare other staff and students to work and learn remotely, and
distributed 150 laptops to students to enable them to learn at home. In consultation
with local EIS and UNISON representatives throughout lockdown, we planned a safe
return to college from the middle of August. Before the summer break we decided to
invest in 400 laptops for lecturers and student loan for the 2020-21 academic year.

Conscious of the value that staff place on the community culture of the college, | sent
out weekly updates throughout lockdown to colleagues to keep them in touch with
developments. This was very important for furloughed staff who valued knowing what
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was going on at the college. Regular communications on preparations for going into,
working through and returning from lockdown received very positive feedback from
staff. In August 2020, staff completed a Pulse Survey that assessed how they were
feeling on return to college after five months in lockdown. Overall:

e 97% felt well informed about the safety measures being taken to allow a safe
return to onsite working

e 95% agreed the college provides a safe and healthy working environment
e 91% felt well informed about the college’s goals and priorities

e 93% felt well supported by their line manager and 95% felt well supported by their
team.

Management Restructure

During 2019-20, | led a process of organisational change to create a leadership team
and supporting structure that would enable us to deliver our vision over the next five
to ten years. A more coherent, strategic approach to the curriculum resulted in moving
from nine centres to five faculties. Following extensive consultation with staff, our
Board of Governors approved a new management structure in March 2020.
Competitive online interviews took place for new posts in May and other managers
were matched into posts. Following an external recruitment exercise, the vice principal
for learning and attainment was appointed and started in September 2020.

Mental health

Supported with funding from the Scottish Funding Council the college recruited two
mental health counsellors to support our students. Feedback has been very positive
despite lockdown. Throughout the year, staff and students continued to carry out
excellent work to support mental health and wellbeing. For example, our construction
students built a wooden structure in a local school’s wellbeing garden in memory of
pupils who lost their lives to suicide. Health and social care and construction students
carried out innovative joint work to promote good mental health. Partnerships with third
sector mental health supporting organisations matured over the year.

Throughout the year, our Student Association worked closely with college teams and
external partners to tackle the stigma surrounding mental health. Their Recharge
initiative to support students experiencing poor mental health was a great success. In
association with lecturers, they ran a Mental Health and Wellbeing Refreshers event
in January in which over a thousand students took part.

One of our social care lecturers worked with male counselling students to support and
prepare younger students likely to work in industry sectors where empathy and support
may be lacking. To support young men open up about challenges with their mental
health and suicidal thoughts, one of our engineering lecturers established an informal
chat group for male students. A social care lecturer, who leads on a range of mental
health activity across the college, worked with See Me to identify opportunities for
collaboration and areas where they could add value to the work the college was
already doing.
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What our lecturers, their students and the Student Association did on mental health
and wellbeing in 2019-20, in collaboration with colleagues across the college and
external partners, was truly innovative. At our 2019 graduation ceremony we
introduced a new award that recognises a person who has made a huge difference to
students at the college over the year. The first recipient of the West Lothian College
Ambassador Award was Donna Paterson-Harvie, the founder of Neil's Hugs
Foundation that helps families in West Lothian affected by suicide and mental health
problems. Donna worked with hundreds of students and staff to promote good mental
health throughout the year.

College conclusion

None of us could have foreseen that a global pandemic would result in colleges closing
their physical premises two thirds of the way into the 2019-20 academic year. | am
grateful to all staff at West Lothian College for the outstanding way they responded to
this. | am proud of how they adapted overnight to ensure that our students had the
best possible experience in the most difficult circumstances that most of them had
ever faced in their lifetime.

| am confident that what we learned through that experience and in the academic year
that follows will strengthen us as a college and help prepare us for a positive future in
a volatile and uncertain world.

Purpose

West Lothian College has one campus in Livingston that serves the people,
communities and economy of West Lothian.

The population of West Lothian is over 182,000 and projected to increase by 11,000
by 2035. This college region has one of the youngest and fastest growing populations
in Scotland, reflected in the growing number of students enrolling at the college each
year. We have consistently delivered above target credit activity agreed with the
Scottish Funding Council. The campus is nearly twenty years old and struggling to
support growing numbers.

The college provides a wide range of further and higher education courses to support
government priorities set out in strategies such as Developing the Young Workforce,
the STEM Education and Training Strategy, and widening access to higher education.

West Lothian College plays a critical role in achieving community planning partnership
priorities, in particular to address the skills needs of employers and enable people to
be better educated with access to quality learning and job opportunities.

West Lothian College is a free-standing corporate body under the provisions of the
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by the Further and
Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently the Post-16 Education
(Scotland) Act 2013.

The college is governed by a Board of Governors and receives the majority of its
funding directly from the Scottish Funding Council (SFC). The college is listed on the
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Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1) of the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a charity
registered in Scotland (SC021216).

Vision, Goals and Values

West Lothian College’s vision is of a highly skilled, enterprising and resilient workforce,
and the four strategic goals that will enable us to achieve that vision are:

e Inspire and enable success for all

e Support economic recovery and growth
e Strengthen our communities

e Lead with vision and empathy.

The values that underpin that vision and everything the college does are:

e Welcoming to all
e Students are at the centre of everything we do
e Always striving for better.

Consultation took place throughout 2019-20 with internal and external stakeholders to
test our vision and goals, and a virtual conference in November 2020 will enable staff
to help develop the goals further and agree behaviours that align with college values.

Key Issues and Risks
The college’s risk management framework includes:

e A risk management policy

e A risk tolerance matrix based on an exercise carried out by the Board and
overseen by the college’s internal auditors

e A Strategic Risk Register with a member of the senior team assigned as risk owner
to each of the strategic risks and

e Operational risk registers for each area of the business and managed by the
relevant member of the college management team

The Audit Committee undertook a review of the strategic risks during 2019-20 and
agreed five key risks for the college. The risks which carried the highest risk rating
were:

e External funding pressures adversely impacting on delivery of the curriculum or
not delivering effectively on educational or commercial contracts and negatively
impacting on future college sustainability.

e Unable to invest fully in the estate and digital infrastructure due to reduced SFC
capital funding and investment funds.

In light of COVID19 an additional risk was added to the risk register which also carried
a high risk rating:
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e The coronavirus results in the college having to close, students not attending
college or disruption to student learning and support because a large proportion
of staff either are infected or require to self-isolate for precautionary purposes
resulting in poor retention and attainment and financial loss to the college

The key actions taken to mitigate against those risks, in particular the impact of
COVID19 were:

e Staff and students equipped with laptops to facilitate home working and remote
learning

e Student assessment practices adapted to enable students to complete
successfully

e Regular meetings of the senior team and college management team to monitor
and assess the situation and ensure staff and students were supported

e Comprehensive process implemented to deal with student resulting

e Regular engagement with Scottish Funding Council and other sector bodies

e Loss of income partially offset by participation in the Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme

e Investment in our digital infrastructure

e Investment in improvements to our estate.

BREXIT
The college has not yet experienced any significant impacts from BREXIT.
Going Concern

The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial
projections and considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing
liabilities and continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

COVID19 impacted on the college’s financial position through loss of fees income. The
college mitigated against this through participation in the UK Government’s Job
Retention Scheme and development of online courses.

Although the college has net liabilities, this is largely due to the change of treatment
of deferred Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income
within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after
more than one year as appropriate.

Performance Summary

The most recently published Scottish Funding Council (SFC) figures on student
satisfaction (Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey 2018-19) showed that
95.6% of West Lothian College FE full time students were satisfied with their
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experience of college (compared with the national average of 93.0%) and that 93.7%
of our HE full time students were satisfied (compared with the national average of
86.8%). These are very positive figures, particularly when our response rate improved
significantly for full time students. There was a huge improvement in satisfaction to the
guestion The college Students’ Association influences change for the better, reflecting
a year of outstanding engagement with students from our Student Association. It also
reflected the positive response from managers, lecturers and other staff to student
feedback through the SPARKLE self-evaluation process.

SFC’s most recent college Leaver Destinations showed that 96.0% of our students had
a positive destination on leaving college compared with the national average of 95.4%.
For example, for the third consecutive year 100% of our HNC Art students achieved
their qualification and secured offers to study at the most prestigious art institutions in
Scotland. A total of 33 university places were offered to the 13 students, nearly two
thirds of whom were for direct entry into year two of their chosen degree.

Of all West Lothian College Scottish Widening Access Programme students who
moved onto university in 2018, the overall retention for those who were still at
university at the end of their first year was 97%. This was higher than the average
percentage for all colleges for 2018 which was 94%.

Project SEARCH, delivered in partnership with West Lothian Council’s supported
employment team and NHS Lothian, is aimed at young people aged 16 to 29 who
have a learning disability and/or autism, and who are leaving school or looking for
work. Our students have achieved 100% employment success for three consecutive
years, and our 2019-20 Project SEARCH students are on track to achieve employment
despite lockdown.

As part of the How good is our College national quality framework, Education Scotland
carried out a progress visit in October 2019 to review the progress we are making on
our Enhancement Plan. The resultant report from Education Scotland was very
positive, concluding that “West Lothian College has made progress on all of the twenty
two strategic actions in its Enhancement Plan”.

Awards

e The college won the Innovation in STEM award at the PIONEER Awards for our
STEM Olympics initiative

e We received a Highly Commended award in the Innovative and Sustainable
Learning Space category at the Education Buildings Scotland for our forest
classroom

e At the College Development Network Awards we achieved a Highly Commended
award in the Inclusive College category and a Commended award for Outstanding
Colleague of the Year

e Our Childrens’ Hearings Scotland Learning Academy team achieved a
Commendation award at the Scottish Digital Business Awards in recognition of
our new digital learning programme for the volunteer panel member community.

Despite the major disruption caused by COVID19 the college was able to deliver
significant levels of work-based learning. Working with 200 companies we supported

Accounts 2020 Page 12



West Lothian College

900 employees to undertake SVQs. We had 261 modern apprentices in training,
including 149 new starts. Through the Flexible Workforce Development Fund, the
college worked with 25 companies to train 1,279 employees. Continuing our
commitment to the Developing the Young Workforce agenda, we increased the
number of foundation apprenticeships, with 184 students enrolled from schools across
West Lothian including 134 new starts. Our Children’s Hearings Scotland Learning
Academy team trained 2,215 panel members throughout Scotland in 2019-20.

The statement of comprehensive income shows a deficit for the year of £5,005,000.
However, after adjusting for non-cash items such as depreciation and pension
adjustments, the college achieved an adjusted operating surplus of £196,000.

Performance Analysis
Key Performance Indicators
Activity Targets

In 2019-20 the college delivered it highest ever number of credits, 45,831 against a
target of 44,752. We continued to exceed our credit target and additional non-
consolidated credits reallocated by SFC during the year.

Continuing the trend of an increasing demand, the college saw an increase in full time
FE and HE enrolments and in part time HE enrolments in 2019-20. There was a
decrease in part time FE enrolments as a direct result of the lockdown caused by the
pandemic. Full time student recruitment for the 2020-21 academic year has met the
overall target set for both FE and HE enrolments.

An increasing proportion of full time students live in West Lothian, and the college
continued to be the top destination for school leavers in West Lothian with three
quarters who moved onto college in 2019 choosing West Lothian College.

Student Success

In November 2019 SFC published sector performance statistics for 2018-19 that
confirmed across Scotland that, while the number of students increased across the
sector, student success declined compared to the previous year. West Lothian
College’s performance on student attainment went against the national decline and
was above the sector average in all four areas for student success (FEFT, FEPT,
HEFT, HEPT).

West Lothian College was one of only two regional colleges that improved on all four
areas over the year. For all student enrolments over 160 hours, the college was in the
top three of fifteen regional colleges, second for success of students living in the most
deprived areas, and third for care-experienced students achieving their qualifications.

At the time of writing this report, due to the impact of a large volume of student
deferrals caused by lockdown, it is not possible to provide an analysis of student
success performance indicators for 2019-20.
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Financial Review

Nature, Objectives and Strategies

The college’s management and control ensure financial stability is sound, and there
are clear management structures and reporting arrangements in place with
performance indicators and risk management processes to support delivery of
outcomes.

To monitor progress against its Outcome Agreement, the college focuses on a range
of key performance indicators which are reviewed by managers and the Board of
Governors on a regular basis. Financial sustainability, achieving the credit target, and
retention and attainment were identified as key strategic risks in the college’s 2019-20
strategic risk register.

The Board presents its report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 July 2020. The Board of Governors has approved these accounts on the basis the
college is a going concern. The audited financial statements have been prepared
under the historic cost convention in line with the principles and guidance set out in
the Statement of Recommended Practice, Accounting for Further and Higher
Education and with the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM).

Scope of the Financial Statements
The Financial Statements cover all activities of the college.
Financial Position

Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2020

The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £1,599,000
(2019 - deficit of £1,351,000), with total comprehensive income deficit of £5,005,000
(2019 — deficit of £4,387,000). The total comprehensive income in 2020 recorded an
actuarial loss in respect of pension funds of £5,895,000 (2019 — loss of £3,036,000).
After transfer of £2,190,000 to the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit on the
Income and Expenditure account increased by £7,195,000 from £13,351,000 deficit to
£20,546,000 deficit.

The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £197,000 for holiday pay accrual,
£2,211,000 for voluntary agreed PFI termination loan, £3,806,000 for early retirement
provisions, £14,299,000 for defined benefit pension obligations and £33,000 for
trading activities (see Note 16).

The college is reporting net total liabilities of £12,513,000 in its balance sheet, which
is due to the reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred income within
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than
one year as appropriate and the actuarial loss in respect of Pension Schemes.
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Cash Budget for Priorities

Following their reclassification as central government bodies from 1 April 2014,
colleges are now also required to comply with Central Government budgeting rules.
In addressing the impact of these budgeting rules, Scottish Government and SFC
committed to providing the cash budget previously earmarked for depreciation for use
on specified priorities.

Colleges have now each been given a fixed cash budget for priorities which must be
spent on agreed government priorities as outlined in the table below. Spend of the
college’s cash budget for priorities, and impact on the operating position for the
academic year, is detailed below.

Table of cash budget for priorities spend

Year ended Year ended

31 July 2020 31 July 2019

£000 £000

Revenue - -

Total impact on operating position - -
Capital

Loan repayments 158 158

Early retirement provision payments 32 32

Total Capital 190 190

Total cash budget for priorities spend 190 190

SFC has confirmed that a deficit resulting from the college following its guidance
should be treated as a ‘technical’ deficit and should not be interpreted, on its own, as
a challenge to the college’s ongoing financial sustainability. Audit Scotland accepts
that a deficit arising from the use of cash funding originally provided for non-cash
depreciation does not indicate an underlying financial sustainability concern.

Adjusted Operating Position

The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) presents the financial performance
during the accounting period in accordance with the FE/HE SORP. The adjusted
operating position is intended to reflect the financial performance of the college after
allowing for non-cash adjustments and other material one-off or distorting items
required by the SORP. The adjusted operating position is therefore designed to
smooth any volatility in reported results arising from FRS 102 and also to recognise
that some of the reported costs do not have an immediate cash impact on the college.
This should give a better indication of the college’s cash generative capacity.
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Note | 2019-20 2018-19
£000 £000

Deficit before other gains and losses (1,599) (1,351)
(FE/HE SORP basis)
Add:
- Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant) 1 234 330
- Pension adjustment — Net service cost (FRS 102) 2 1,510 1,157
- Pension adjustment — Net interest cost 3 241 194
Deduct:
- CBP allocated to loan repayments 4 158 158
- CBP allocated to Early Retirement Payments 5 32 32
Adjusted operating surplus 196 140

The adjusted operating surplus above does not take account of a further £168,000 of
payments the college has made towards its Early Retirement Provision during the year
(£166,000 in 2018-19). Taking this into account the adjusted operating result would
be a surplus of £28,000 (deficit of £26,000 in 2018-19).

Note 1 Depreciation net of deferred capital grant is added back in recognition that this
has a non-cash budget from the Scottish Government.

Note 2 The non-cash element of current and past service pension cost less cash
contributions paid.

Note 3 The non-cash element of interest earned on pension assets less interest cost
on pension liabilities.

Note 4 Cash Budget for Priorities is included in income but the loan repayment is not
reflected in costs therefore this amount is adjusted.

Note 5 Cash payments in respect of the Early Retirement Provision included in CBP.

Taxation Status

The college is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charities Regulator as a
Scottish Charity and is exempt from corporation tax and capital gains tax. The college
receives no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.

Cash Flows

Cash flow projections are prepared annually, broken down on a monthly basis to
ensure that these are sufficient to meet the needs of the college. These are reviewed
monthly and reports are provided to the Senior Team and the Finance and General
Purposes Committee. Bank balances are checked on a daily basis and day-to day
surplus funds are deposited overnight in a high interest bank account.

Liquidity
The college uses a number of ratios to assess the college’s liquidity. The two key ratios

are current assets: current liabilities and days cash to total expenditure. However as
a result of ONS reclassification the college is only able to hold minimum cash reserves.
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At the end of 2019-20 current assets: current liabilities were 0.8:1 and days cash to
total expenditure was 21 days reflecting the ONS requirement.

Creditor Payment Policy

The college complies with the CBI Prompt Payment Code and has a policy of paying
its suppliers within 30 days of invoice unless the invoice is contested. All disputes and
complaints are handled as quickly as possible. The college did not pay any late interest
payments during the year.

The Scottish Public Finance Manual sets a Government target for the payment of
invoices within ten working days of their receipt. While this is a difficult target for the
college to achieve, it nevertheless strives to pay all invoices as promptly as possible.

Post-Balance Sheet Events
There are no post-balance sheet events.
Human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters

West Lothian College is committed to upholding human rights, anti-corruption and anti-
bribery within the college and through the supply chain.

Environmental matters

West Lothian College recognises that it has a role to play in the conservation and
protection of the environment. The college works towards improving its own
environmental and sustainable practices and promoting an awareness of
environmental responsibilities amongst our staff and students.

Through our Environmental and Sustainability Policy we:

o comply with and exceed when possible all applicable legislation, regulations
and codes of practice

o ensure that all environmental risks are assessed, managed and controlled

o integrate sustainability considerations into all our business decisions

o minimise the impact on the environment and our sustainability of our core
activities, and

o review and continually strive to improve our sustainability and lessen our impact
on the environment.

The Carbon Management Plan 2016-20 set out a target of reducing the college’s
carbon emissions baseline by 10% (144 tonnes co2) by 2020. The college achieved
this target ahead of schedule. During 2020-21 the college will produce a new five-year
sustainability plan.
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Climate Change (Scotland) Act compliance

The college complied with the Scottish Government sustainability reporting in line with
the requirements of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009.

The Performance Report is approved by the Principal on 8 December 2020

Jackie Galbraith
Principal and Chief Executive
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on
the service arrangements and remuneration of the Principal and determines the
service arrangements and remuneration of Vice Principals.

Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements

Salary Entitlements?

The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of college
senior management.

Single total figure of remuneration

12 months ended 31 July 2020 12 months ended 31 July 2019

Actual Pension Total Actual Pension Total
Name Salary Benefit Salary Benefit

£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Alex Linkston 20-25 0 20-25 20-25 0 20-25
Jackie Galbraith 105-110 20-25 115-120 100 - 105 5-10 105 - 110
Simon Earp 70-75 10-15 80-85 65-70 5-10 70-75
Jennifer McLaren 70-75 10-15 80-85 65-70 5-10 70-75
Mhairi Harrington* N/A N/A N/A 0-5 0 0-5
George Hotchkiss** N/A N/A N/A 65 - 70 5-10 70-75

*Mhairi Harrington left the pension scheme at the end of 2016-17 and left the college on 3 August 2018
when her salary would have been in band 110k to 115k
*George Hotchkiss left the college on 15 July 2019

Median Remuneration

Colleges are required by the FReM to disclose the relationships between the
remuneration of the highest paid official and the median remuneration of their
workforce.

Based on the twelve-month equivalent figures above, the banded remuneration of the
highest paid official in the organisation in the financial year 2019-20 was £105k-£110k
(E105k-£110k in 2018-19). This was 3.5 times (3.5 times in 2018-19) the median
remuneration of the workforce which was £30k-£35k (2018-19 £30k-£35Kk).

Note:

a) The salaries in the above table represent the amount earned in the financial year

b) The value of pension benefits is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 plus the real increase in
any lump sum less the contributions made by the individual. The x20 multiplier aims to bring public bodies in line
with other industries in disclosing an assessed cumulative pension benefit for a standard 20 year period which is the
estimated life span following retirement.

c) The details in this table are subject to audit
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Accrued Pension Benefits

Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher’s
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), a defined benefit scheme which is notionally funded,
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Both STSS and LGPS are
career average salary pension schemes.

The scheme’s normal retirement age is the scheme member’s state pension age.

Contribution rates are set annually for all employees. There is no automatic entitlement
to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to
the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based
on final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service.

Senior Officials’ Pension
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff.

The accrued pension benefits for senior officials are set out in the table below, together
with the pension contributions made by the college.

Accrued Accrued lump Real increase in | Real increase in
pension at sum at pension pension lump sum
Name pension age age 01/08/19 to 01/08/19 to
at 31/07/20 at 31/07/20 31/07/20 31/07/20
£000 £000 £000 £000
Jackie Galbraith 14 0 4 0
Simon Earp 5 0 3 0
Jennifer McLaren 15 0 3 0

Cash equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value
of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time.

CETV CETV Real increase in
Name at 31/07/20 at 31/07/19 CETV

£°000 £000 £000
Jackie Galbraith 201 140 61
Simon Earp 63 32 31
Jennifer McLaren 233 178 55

The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age
at which the person will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without
reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to
commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the
effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the
person has accrued as a consequence of their total Local Government service and not
just their current appointment.
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In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual
information should be taken into account:

(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the
assumptions set out above and do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that
any individual may receive upon retirement.

(i) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both

the employer and the scheme member have made over a period of time.

Real increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the

period.

Compensation for loss of office

Five employees left under voluntary exit terms during the year. They received a total
compensation payment of £126,203.30.

2019-20 2018-19
£000 Number of Number of
Employees Employees
15-20 - 2
20-25 4 -
25-30 1 -

There were no compulsory redundancies in the year.

Staff Report

Salaries and Related costs

2020 2020 2020 2019
Directly Seconded and Total Total
employed staff agency staff
£000 £000 £000 £000
Wages and salaries 9,975 335 10,310 9,926
Social security costs 924 31 955 921
Other pension costs 3,307 111 3,418 2,739
Restructuring Costs 99 0 99 40
Total 14,305 477 14,782 13,626
Average number of FTE 272 10 282 296

The college employed 262 females (67%) and 128 (33%) males during 2019-20
(headcount).
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Sickness Absence Data

The total sickness absence percentage as at 30 June 2020 was 6.21%. This is higher
than the equivalent figure for 2018-19 (4.9%) and due to an increase in long term sick
absence.

Facility Time

In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements)
regulations 2017, the college provided the following support through paid facility time
for union officials working at the college during the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020.

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant 8
period
Full time equivalent employee number 7.4

Percentage of time spend on facility time

Percentage Number of employees
0% 0

1%-50% 7.4
51%-99% 0

100% 0

Percentage of pay bill spend on facility time

Total cost of facility time 21,334
Total pay hill 14,782,000
Percentage of the total pay bill spend on facility time 0.1%

Paid trade union activities

Time spend on trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours
was 100%.

Equal Opportunities

West Lothian College published its Equality Mainstreaming Report Review in April
2019, providing an update on progress made to achieve our General and Public Sector
equality duties. A range of policies ensures that staff, students and visitors are treated
equitably regardless of colour, race, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or
belief, disability, gender or gender reassignment, age and sexual orientation,
pregnancy and maternity, marriage or civil partnership.

We value diversity and advance equality of opportunity, foster good relations and seek
to eliminate discrimination, victimisation and harassment in all our activities.

During 2019-20 the college achieved the Epilepsy Friendly award and provided
disabled toilet access in two buildings to address the needs of disabled students and
staff.
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Policies and procedures, work practices and terms and conditions of employment are
reviewed continuously and equality-impact assessed to comply with legislation and
match best practice.

Applications for a place are considered from all members of the community in respect
only of the qualifications and skills necessary to meet course entry requirements.

The college considers all applications for employment from all members of the
community in respect only of the qualifications and skills necessary to fulfil the
requirements of the position.

Approved by the Board of Governors on 8 December 2020 and signed on its behalf
by:

Jackie Galbraith
Principal and Chief Executive
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT
Board of Governors

Membership of the Board of Governors

The Post 16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013 requires that the board of a regional college
should consist of no fewer than 15, nor more than 18 members. The Board of Governor
members who held office during the year were as follows:

Alex Linkston Chair Re-appointed 27/06/20
Sue Cook Vice Chair and non-executive member

Jackie Galbraith Principal and Chief Executive

Simon Ashpool Non-Executive member Re-appointed 01/07/20
Thomas Bates Non-Executive member

Elaine Cook Non-Executive member

Frank Gribben Non-Exec /Senior Independent Member

Lynne Hollis Non-Executive member

Richard Lockhart Non-Executive member Re-appointed 01/07/20
lain McIntosh Non-Executive member

Colin Miller Non-Executive member

Moira Niven Non-Executive member

Claire Probert Non-Executive member Resigned 19/06/20
Norman Ross Non-Executive member Resigned 10/08/19
Sue Stahly Non-Executive member Appointed 14/11/19
Julia Simpson Staff

Neil Sinclair Staff

Michelle Low Student Term ended 30/06/20
Gemma Reynolds Student Term ended 30/06/20

Membership of the Senior Team

The Senior Team is responsible for the day to day management of West Lothian
College’s activities and operations and consists of:

Jackie Galbraith Principal and Chief Executive

Simon Earp Vice Principal Curriculum and
Enterprise

Jennifer McLaren Vice Principal Finance and Curriculum
Services

A new Vice Principal, Learning & Attainment started at the college on 1 September
2020.

Related Party Transactions

Due to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of its Board of Governors
(being drawn from local public and private sector organisations), it is inevitable that
transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the college’s Board
of Governors may have an interest, and will be recorded as such in the Minutes of the
Meetings and/or the Register of Interest. All transactions involving organisations in which
a member of the Board of Governors may have a material interest are conducted at arm’s
length and in accordance with normal project and procurement procedures. The related
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party transactions due to/by the college for the year ended 31 July 2020 and the amounts
outstanding at this date are disclosed in note 24.

Personal Data Related Incidents

Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 requires that organisations report on personal
data related incidents. In 2019-20, the college had no reported data incidents (2018-19:
no incidents).

Jackie Galbraith
Principal and Chief Executive
8 December 2020
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board of Governors

The Board of Governors are required to present audited financial statements for each
financial year.

In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by
the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16
Education (Scotland) Act 2013, the Board of Governors is responsible for the
administration and management of the college’s affairs, including ensuring an effective
system of internal control, and is required to present audited financial statements for each
financial year.

The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the college and
enable it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher
Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently amended by the Post-16 Education
(Scotland) Act 2013, the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for
Further and Higher Education, the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2019-20
(FReM) where applicable and other relevant accounting standards. In addition, within the
terms and conditions of a Financial Memorandum agreed between the Scottish Funding
Council and the college’s Board of Governors, the Board of Governors, through its
designated office holder, is required to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the college’s state of affairs and of the surplus or deficit
and cash flows for that year.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued
by the Scottish Funding Council which brings together the provisions of the Financial
Memorandum with other formal disclosures that the Scottish Funding council require the
Board of Governors to make in the financial statements and related notes.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is required to:
o Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
o Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

o Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the college will continue in operation. The Board of Governors is
satisfied that it has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable
future and for this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements.

The Board of Governors has taken reasonable steps to:
o Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes

for which they have been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum
with the Funding Council and any other conditions which the Funding Council may
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from time to time prescribe;

o Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to
safeguard public funds and funds from other sources;

o Safeguard the assets of the college and prevent and detect fraud,;

o Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the college’s
resources and expenditure.

The key elements of the college’s system of internal financial control, which is designed
to discharge the responsibilities set out above, include the following:

o Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of
academic and support departments;

o A comprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by
detailed annual income, expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;

o Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly
reviews of financial results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast
outturns;

o Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure,
with investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to
formal detailed appraisal and review according to approval levels set by the Board
of Governors;

o Comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures,
approved by the Audit Committee and the Finance and General Purposes
Committee;

o Professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit
Committee and endorsed by the Board of Governors and whose head provides the
Board of Governors with a report on internal audit activity within the college and an
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the college’s system of internal control,
including internal financial control.

Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Auditor

The Auditor General for Scotland has appointed Mazars LLP to undertake the audit for
the year ended 31 July 2020.
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Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The Board of Governors certify that, so far as we are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the college’s auditors are unaware; and as members of the
Board of Governors we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to
make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the college’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Board on 8 December 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

Alex Linkston

Chair

Accounts 2020 Page 28



West Lothian College

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Introduction

The college is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance.
This summary is written to assist the reader of the financial statements and describes the
manner in which the college has applied the principles of good governance set out in 2016
Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public
Finance Manual.

This governance statement is designed to supplement the information provided in the
financial statements. It sets out the governance structures, risk management and internal
control processes that have been operating in West Lothian College in the year ended 31
July 2020 and reports the Board’s assessment of the effectiveness of these arrangements.
During 2019-20 there were changes to the Board membership (see page 24).

Governance Structure

The college has an effective Board and Committee structure in place. All of the
Committees are formally constituted with terms of reference.

Board of Govermors

Finance &

Audit Ceneral
Committee Purposes

Leaming &
Teaching
Committee

Remuneration Nominations
Committee Committee

Committee

The full Board meets four times a year. However, due to COVID19 restrictions these
meetings were held virtually from March 2020. In addition, it holds an annual strategic
meeting which is dedicated to discussing the college’s strategic development. During
2019-20 the Board held a virtual strategic planning workshop in June 2020 to inform the
college’s draft strategic plan 2020-2025 which will be finalised during 2020-21.

Board of Governor Committees

Due to COVID19 restrictions all Committee meetings were held virtually from March
2020 onwards.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year, with the college’s external and internal
auditors in attendance where required. The Committee considers detailed reports together
with recommendations for the improvement of the college’s systems of internal control
and management’s responses and implementation plans. It also receives and considers
reports from the Scottish Funding Council as they affect the college’s business and
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monitors adherence to the regulatory requirements. The Principal and Chair attend
meetings of the Audit Committee but are not members of the Committee.

The Finance and General Purposes Committee recommends to the Board the college’s
annual revenue and capital budgets and normally meets four times a year.

The Learning and Teaching Committee meets four times a year, and focuses on the
quality of the student experience.

The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of senior staff, specifically the
Principal and Vice Principals, and meets as required, normally once a year.

The Nominations Committee considers candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and
meets as required, normally at least once per year. The Nominations Committee is
responsible for selecting candidates for appointment by the Board of Governors to
vacancies in its membership. The Committee may use a number of selection methods,
including external advertising, personal contact, the encouragement of nominations and
the use of a search Committee. The Committee considers the balance of membership,
including members’ experience and skills and identifies any gaps. The Committee also
tries to ensure that the membership of the Board reflects its community. The Committee
makes its recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval for appointment.

Board of Governors Membership

The college’s Board of Governors comprises lay members, students and employees
appointed under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by
the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16
Education (Scotland) Act 2013. The majority of Board members are non-executive. The
roles of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors are separated from the role of the
college’s Principal. During 2019-20 the college improved its gender balance for the non-
executive positions from 8 males/5 females to 7 males/6 females.

Matters specifically reserved to the Board for decision are set out in the college’s Standing
Orders, by custom and under the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding
Council. The Board acknowledges the responsibility for the ongoing strategic direction of
the college, approval of major developments and the receipt of regular reports from the
Principal on the day to day operations of its business.

Board Effectiveness

The Board, and its sub-Committees, participate in annual self-evaluation reviews of its
performance. This is facilitated by the Secretary to the Board using a self-evaluation
questionnaire with all questions being discussed by the Board or Committee as a group
and their consensus view recorded. Any actions for improvement are noted and followed
up at subsequent meetings of the Board or Committees. The evaluation of the
effectiveness of individual members is considered informally by the Chair of the Board or
relevant Committee, and if concerns are noted they follow these up with the member
directly.
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Progress on 2018-19 actions

o The Finance and General Purposes Committee recruited a board member with
Human Resource expertise in their membership

o Committees members attended another Committee meeting to develop their
understanding of the college’s business.

o A joint meeting of the Audit and Finance and General Purposes Committee to
discuss the year-end accounts was considered, it was agreed that the best approach
was that the Chair of each Committee attend each meeting

Actions for improvement from the 2019-20 self-evaluation reviews were:

o The Audit Committee want to recruit a co-opted member with an accountancy
background. A co-opted member has now been appointed.

o Finance & General Purposes Committee would like new members to be provided
with appropriate opportunities for new members to develop their knowledge of the
wide range of college provisions, partnerships, student experience and role of
student representatives.

o Board members expressed an interest in attending Committee and board meetings
at other colleges.

o Board members are to be encouraged to observe another Committee’s meeting.

An independent review of Board effectiveness was due to be undertaken in 2019-20,
however due to COVID19 restrictions this has been deferred to 2020-21.
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Attendance

The attendance of members at Board meetings during the year was as follows:
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Alex Linkston Chair 27/06/20 5 5 2 6 3
Sue Cook Non-Exec 01/03/19 4 4 6 3
/Vice Chair
Simon Ashpool Non-Exec 01/07/20 3 4
Thomas Bates Non-Exec 01/08/17 3 2
Elaine Cook Non-Exec 02/05/19 4 2
Jackie Galbraith Principal 06/08/18 5 5 4
Frank Gribben Non-Exec 01/03/19 5 5
/Senior
Independent
Member
Lynne Hollis Non-Exec 02/05/19 4 2 3
Richard Lockhart Non-Exec 01/07/20 4 1 2
lain MclIntosh Non-Exec 01/03/19 5 4 5
Colin Miller Non-Exec 01/03/19 3 3
Moira Niven Non-Exec 01/12/16 5 4 6
Sue Stahly Non-Exec 14/11/19 4 2
Claire Probert Non-Exec 01/08/17 19/06/20 1
Norman Ross Non-Exec 01/12/15 10/08/19 0
Julia Simpson Staff 06/09/18 3 3
Neil Sinclair Staff 25/06/19 5 4
Michelle Low Student 01/06/18 30/06/20 2 2
Gemma Reynolds Student 01/06/18 30/06/20 3 2

Assessment of Corporate Governance

The Secretary to the Board resigned from the college at the end of January 2020. Between
February and June 2020, the role of Secretary to the Board was overseen by the Vice
Principal, Finance and Curriculum Services. In June 2020 the Board of Governors
appointed the Vice Principal Finance and Curriculum Services as Secretary to the Board
on an interim basis until December 2020 when the Board will review the appointment.

The Code of Good Governance states; “The board secretary may be a member of the
senior management team in their board secretary capacity, but they cannot hold any other
senior management team position at the same time”. The Board of Governors recognises
the importance of the Board Secretary being able to report directly to the Chair
independently of the Principal to prevent any conflicts of interests, however believes that
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this can be achieved without the requirement to appoint a Board Secretary without other
senior team responsibilities.

As well as appointing the Vice Principal, Finance and Curriculum Services the Board
appointed the PA to the Principal to assist the Vice Principal, both of whom will report
directly to the Chair in relation to the Board Secretary duties. The Board of Governors
considers that any risk of non-disclosure or non-compliance not being reported to the
Board of Governors due to a conflict of interest could be mitigated by the appointment of
two individuals with direct reporting to the Chair. However, the Board of Governors wished
to keep this under review and therefore approved the appointment on an interim basis
until December 2020 when it will be reviewed. This arrangement is not unusual in either
the public or the private sector.

Estates Strategy

The college estates strategy allows for replacement of windows and window frames and
boilers as well as implementing the agreed programme of lifecycle maintenance so that
the fabric of the college buildings remain of a high standard.

However, the college has outgrown its physical space and has dated classrooms and
facilities. To address this a five-year estates plan will be produced during 2020-21 setting
out the estates needs of the curriculum faculties.

Risk Management

The college maintains a Strategic Risk Register. Each strategic risk is assigned an owner
from the Senior Team. All support areas and curriculum centres maintain an operational
risk register which is updated quarterly. The operational risk register updates feed into the
quarterly Strategic Risk Register updates to the Audit Committee. The Performance
Report details key strategic risks identified during 2019-20 and the mitigating actions.

The most significant risks during 2019-20 were:

e External funding pressures adversely impacting on delivery of the curriculum or not
delivering effectively on educational or commercial contracts and negatively
impacting on future college sustainability.

e Unable to invest fully in the estate and digital infrastructure due to reduced SFC
capital funding and investment funds.

In light of COVID19 an additional risk was added to the risk register during the year which
also carried a high-risk rating:

e the coronavirus resulting in the college having to close, students not attending college
or disruption to student learning and support because a large proportion of staff either
are infected or require to self-isolate for precautionary purposes resulting in poor
retention and attainment and financial loss to the college.

The Audit Committee advises the Board of Governors on the strategic risk process. The
Committee reviews the risk management framework, strategic risks and considers
management’s review of operational risks. This review has included considering whether
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risks are appropriately ranked based on likelihood and impact and considering whether
mitigating controls highlighted as being in place are adequate.

Reports by management have been received and reviewed by the Board and Board
Committees which have provided information as to how risks are being managed and what
internal controls are in place.

Internal Audit

West Lothian College also has an internal audit service, the work of which concentrates
on areas of key activities determined in accordance with the annual internal audit plan
approved by the Board of Governors. The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee,
and have direct access to the chair of the Audit Committee if required. The internal
auditors issue an annual report that gives an opinion of the adequacy, reliability and
effectiveness of the college’s internal control system.

Internal audit reports have been received on a range of areas within the college during
2019-20. However due to COVID19 restrictions the full programme was not able to be
delivered in 2019-20 with some reviews deferred to 2020-21.

In the internal auditor’s opinion, the college has a framework of internal controls in place
that provides reasonable assurance regarding the organisation’s governance, risk
management, achievement of objectives and value for money for the year ended 31 July
2020.

Internal Control

The college’s Board of Governors is responsible for the college’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control is conducted through the work of the Board of Governors, the Finance
and General Purposes Committee and the Audit Committee. The system can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions
authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either
prevented or would be detected within a timely period.

The college has a range of internal financial controls which include:

o a budgeting system with an annual budget which is approved by the Board of
Governors;

o the provision of management information on a planned, regular basis and as
required;

o regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of monthly and
annual financial reports and key performance indicators which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts; and

o financial regulations, which identify policy and set up a control system within which
management can delegate authority whilst informing staff of correct financial
procedures.
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Assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls

The Board of Governors is of the opinion that throughout the year ended 31 July 2020,
the college has been in compliance with all the principles set out in the 2016 Code of Good
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance
Manual.

The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the college’s significant risks, that it has been in place for the year ended
31 July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements,
that it is regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors and that it accords with the 2016
Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public
Finance Manual.

External auditors have reviewed the key financial controls to the extent required, to ensure
the college’s financial statements are not materially misstated. The external auditors have
not identified any weaknesses in key controls and the wider scope work has identified
appropriate Governance procedures and management has adequate arrangements in
place covering standards of conduct.

BREXIT

The Board of Governors does not consider there to be any significant impact from
BREXIT.

Going Concern

The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections
and considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Although the college has net liabilities, this is due to the change of treatment of deferred
Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within creditors
and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as
appropriate and actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes.

Approved by order of the members of the Board on 8 December 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

Alex Linkston Jackie Galbraith
Chair Principal and Chief Executive
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
GOVERNORS OF WEST LOTHIAN COLLEGE, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR
SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West
Lothian College for the year ended 31 July 2020 under the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment
(Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows,
Statement of Accounting Policies and notes to the financial statements. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:

* give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council
of the state of the college’s affairs as at 31 July 2020 and of its deficit for the year then
ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish
Funding Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and
regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the
Auditor General for Scotland. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We were appointed by the Auditor General on 31 May 2016. The period of
total uninterrupted appointment is five years. We are independent of the college in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Non-audit services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the college.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter — Effect of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of land and
buildings and pension fund property assets

We draw attention to Note 1(q) of the financial statements, which describes the effects of
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the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the College’s Land and Buildings Freehold and
the valuation of the College’s share of Lothian Pension Fund’s investment property assets.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs
(UK) require us to report to you where:

+ the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

» the college has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Risks of material misstatement

We have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, which is available from the Audit
Scotland website, the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we
identified and our conclusions thereon.

Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Management's Responsibilities,
the Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such
internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management is responsible for
assessing the college’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
deemed inappropriate.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect
fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator,
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the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative
size of individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. We
therefore design and perform audit procedures which respond to the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Other information in the annual report and accounts

The Board of Management is responsible for the other information in the annual report
and accounts. The other information comprises the information other than the financial
statements, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report, and our independent
auditor’'s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on
matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later
in this report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read all the
other information in the annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on regularity of expenditure and income

Opinion on regularity

In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial
statements were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and
guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.

Responsibilities for regularity

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and
income. We are responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and
income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.
Report on other requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland

In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly

prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and
directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.
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In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

+ the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that
report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council;
and

+ the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that
report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you
if, In our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

+ the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* there has been failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities

In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions on
the wider scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in our
Annual Audit Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In
accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, we do not undertake to
have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third
parties.

Lucy Nutley,

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Apex 2

97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh

EH12 5HA

Date

Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
Income
SFC grants 2 13,544 13,723
Tuition fees and education contracts 3 3,243 3,391
Other income 4 2,020 1,891
Investment income 5 1 1
Total Income 18,808 19,006
Expenditure
Staff Costs 6 14,782 13,626
Other operating expenses 7 4,615 5,750
Depreciation 10 769 787
Interest payable 8 241 194
Total Expenditure 20,407 20,357
Deficit before tax (1,599) (1,351)
Taxation 9 - -
Deficit for the year (1,599) (1,351)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of assets 2,489 -
Actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes (5,895) (3,036)
Total comprehensive income for the year (5,005) (4,387)
Represented by:
Restricted comprehensive income - -
Unrestricted comprehensive income (5,005) (4,387)
(5,005) (4,387)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared under the FE/HE SORP. The SORP does
not permit colleges to reflect the non-cash budget for depreciation in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Note 28 provides details of the adjusted operating position on a

Central Government basis.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

Income and
Expenditure Revaluation Reserve
Account
£°000 £°000 Total
Balance at 31 July 2018 (9,262) 6,141 (3,121)
Deficit from statement of
comprehensive income (1,351) - (1,351)
Other comprehensive
income (3,036) - (3,036)
Transfers between
revaluation reserve and 298 (298) )
income and expenditure
account
Total comprehensive
income for the year (4,089) (298) (4,387)
Balance at 31 July 2019 (13,351) 5,843 (7,508)
Deficit from statement of (1,599) i (1,599)
comprehensive income ' ’
Other comprehensive
income (5,895) 2,489 (3,406)
Transfers between
revaluation reserve and
income and expenditure 299 (299) i
account
Total comprehensive (7,195) 2190 (5,005)
income for the year ' ' ’
Balance at 31 July 2020 (20,546) 8,033 (12,513)
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY

Notes 2020 2019
£°000 £°000
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets 10 19,792 18,073
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 11 1,444 1,169
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,129 760
2,573 1,929
Less: Creditors; amounts falling due within one 12 (3,358) (2,790)
year
Net Current Liabilities (785) (861)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 19,007 17,212
Creditors: amounts falling due after more 13 (13,415) (14,060)
than one year
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations 15 (14,299) (6,904)
Other provisions 15 (3,806) (3,756)
Total Net Liabilities (12,513) (7,508)
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure account 16 (20,546) (13,351)
Revaluation reserve 8,033 5,843
Total Reserves (12,513) (7,508)

The financial statements on pages 40 to 67 were approved by the Board of Governors
on 8 December 2020 and signed on its behalf on that date by:

Alex Linkston Jackie Galbraith
Chair Principal
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
Deficit for the year (1,599) (1,351)
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation 769 787
Deferred capital grants released to income (535) (457)
(Increase) in debtors (274) (305)
Increase in creditors due within one year 615 362
(Decrease) in provisions (200) (198)
Pension costs less contributions payable 1,510 1,157
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income (1) Q)
Interest payable 241 194
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 526 188
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 1 1
1 1
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of amounts borrowed (158) (158)
(158) (158)
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in
the year 369 31
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year 760 729
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,129 760
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2020

1 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the financial statements.

a) Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019, and in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards FRS 102 and the 2019-20 Government Financial
Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government. They conform to the Accounts
Direction and other guidance published by the Scottish Funding Council (FReM 2.2.6).

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
college’s accounting policies.

b) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of surplus land and certain fixed assets.

The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards as adapted
or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting policy,
the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the college for the purposes of
giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the college in
dealing with items that are considered material to the financial statements are set out. (FReM
2.2.6).

c) Going Concern

The activities of the college, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance are set out in the Performance Report. The financial position of the college, its cash
flow and liquidity are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. The net
liabilities are due to the reclassification of deferred Government grants as deferred income within
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year
as appropriate.

The college’s forecasts and financial projections indicate that the college has a reasonable
expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its
Financial Statements.

d) Recognition of Income
Income from the sale of goods or services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when the goods or services are supplied to the external customers or the terms of the contract

have been satisfied.

Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income over the period in which students are studying.
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Income received in advance is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance
sheet and then released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it is earned.

All income from short-term deposits and Investment income is credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a receivable basis.

Funds the college receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are excluded
from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

e) Grant Funding

Government revenue grants including the recurrent grants from the Scottish Funding Council are
recognised in income over the periods in which the college recognises the related costs for which
the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a government grant is deferred it is recognised
as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due
after more than one year as appropriate.

Grants from non-governmental sources are recognised in income when the college is entitled to
the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of
performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the
balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met.

f) Capital Grants

Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset.
Other capital grants are recognised in income when the college is entitled to the funds subject to
any performance related conditions being met.

g) Short Term Employment Benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as
an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the college. Any unused benefits
are accrued and measured as the additional amount the college expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement.

h) Pension Schemes

Retirement benefits to employees of the college are provided by the Teachers' Superannuation
Scheme (Scotland) (STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF). These are defined benefit
schemes which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Earnings Related Pension
Scheme until March 2016.

) STSS

The college is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the STSS on
a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 102, accounts for the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The amount charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the
year. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of periodic valuations
using the projected unit method.

i) LPF
The college’s share of LPF scheme assets and liabilities are valued by the LPF actuary,

Hymans Robertson. Contributions to the schemes are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees working lives with
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the college. The contributions are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial valuations.
In accordance with FRS 102, the amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
represents the service cost expected to arise from employee service in the current year.

The costs of enhanced early retirement benefits are borne directly by the college.
i) Tangible Fixed Assets
In line with the FReM all tangible assets must be carried at fair value.

i) Land and Buildings

Land and Buildings are measured using the revaluation model. Under the revaluation model
assets are revalued to fair value. Where appropriate Depreciated Replacement cost has been
used as a measure of fair value for land and buildings otherwise Market Value will be used.
The college has a policy of ensuring a full revaluation takes place at least every 5 years such
that the fair value is not materially different to the current value. Depreciation and impairment
losses are subsequently charged on the revalued amount.

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life.

College buildings are depreciated over 30 years and transferred car parking areas are
depreciated over 25 years, both commencing in the first full financial year after the date of
transfer of the estate to public ownership (2 April 2007). Other additions to the estate are
depreciated over 10 years from the date they are brought into use.

Costs incurred in relation to land and buildings after initial purchase or construction, and prior
to valuation, are capitalised to the extent they increase the expected future benefits to the
college.

If a building is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the first year
will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months the asset was in use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.

Buildings under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’
certificates and other direct costs incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are
brought into use.

ii) Fixed Plant and Equipment

Equipment is capitalised at cost and carried at depreciated historical cost, which is used as a
proxy for fair value when it is expected to be in use within the business on a continuing basis
for at least 3 years. Depreciated historical cost is deemed to be more appropriate than
revaluing for equipment as it is common for such assets to reduce in value rather than to
increase as they are utilised by the college (FReM 6.2). Capitalised equipment is depreciated
over its useful economic life from the date it is brought into use as follows: -

Fixed Plant 5-29 years
Equipment 4 years

Where equipment is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the
first year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months that the asset was in use.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the date of preparation
of each Balance Sheet.
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iii) Operating Leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Any lease premiums or incentives are spread over the lease term.

iv) Finance Leases

Leases in which the college assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the leased asset are classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance
lease and the corresponding lease liabilities are initially recognised at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of
the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
S0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiiment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.

i) Maintenance of Premises

The cost of maintenance is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in
which it is incurred.

k) Stocks

The Board of Governors agree that stocks be written off in the year of acquisition on the basis of
non-materiality.

[) Cash

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are
repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

m) Taxation

The college is an exempt charity within the meaning of the Trustee Investment and Charities
(Scotland) Act 2005 and, as such is a charity within the meaning of section 506 (1) of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act (ICTA) 1988. The college is recognised as a charity by HM Revenue
& Customs and is recorded on the index of charities maintained by the Office of Scottish Charity
Regulator and therefore not liable for corporation tax.

Non-recoverable Value Added Tax arising from expenditure on non-trading activities is charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The college benefits by being exempt from corporation tax on income it receives from tuition fees,
interest and rents.
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n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the college has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

0) Agency Arrangements

The college acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain Student Support Funds.
These funds are excluded from the college Statement of Comprehensive Income; movements have
been disclosed in the notes. Where the college has more discretion in the manner in which specific
funds are disbursed, and these funds do not meet the definition of agency funds, the income and
expenditure relating to those funds is shown in the college Statement of Comprehensive Income.

p) Financial Instruments

The college only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition
of financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors and other loans to related
parties.

Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and
creditors, are measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other
consideration expected to be paid or received.

g) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

o Determine whether leases entered into by the college either as a lessor or a lessee are
operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by
lease basis.

o Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the college’s tangible assets. Factors
taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and
expected future financial performance of the asset.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
o Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors
such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account.

. Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends
on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 18,
will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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o Material Valuation Uncertainty (revaluation of land and buildings)

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID19), declared by the World Health
Organisation as a “Global Pandemic” on the 11 March 2020, has impacted many aspects of
daily life and the global economy — with some real estate markets experiencing significantly
lower levels of transactional activity and liquidity. As at the valuation date, there is a shortage
of market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. The valuation is
therefore reported as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as set out in VPS 3
and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation — Global Standards. Consequently, less certainty — and
a higher degree of caution — should be attached to the valuation than would normally be the
case. For the avoidance of doubt, the inclusion of the ‘material valuation uncertainty’
declaration above does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon. Rather, the
declaration has been included to ensure transparency of the fact that — in the current
extraordinary circumstances — less certainty can be attached to the valuation than would
otherwise be the case. The material uncertainty clause is to serve as a precaution and does
not invalidate the valuation.

o Material Valuation Uncertainty (Lothian Pension Fund)

The College participates in the Lothian Pension Fund (the Fund). The outbreak of the Novel
Coronavirus (COVID19) declared by the World Health Organisation as a ‘Global Pandemic’
on the 11 March 2020, has impacted global financial markets. Travel restrictions have been
implemented by many countries. Market activity is being impacted in many sectors. As at
the valuation date, the Fund's property portfolio valuers consider less weight can be attached
to previous market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. The
current response to COVID19 means that the valuers are faced with an unprecedented set
of circumstances on which to base a judgement.

The property portfolio valuation is therefore reported on the basis of ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ as per VPS3 and VPGA10 of the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently, less
certainty — and a higher degree of caution — are attached to the valuation of the Funds’
investment property assets than would normally be the case. Given the unknown future
impact that COVID19 might have on the real estate market, the valuers have recommended
that the valuation of the Funds’ properties should be kept under frequent review.

For the avoidance of doubt, the inclusion of the ‘material valuation uncertainty’ declaration
above does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied on. Rather, the phrase is used to
be clear and transparent with all parties, in a professional manner that — in the current
extraordinary circumstances — less certainty can be attached to the valuation than would
otherwise be the case. The material uncertainty clause is a disclosure, not a disclaimer. The
College estimates that its share of Fund assets that are subject to a ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ could be material to the financial statements.
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2 SFC GRANTS

SFC Teaching & fee waiver grant
Childcare funds

Release of deferred capital grants (SFC)
Other SFC Grants

3 TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS

FE Fees - UK
HE Fees - UK
SDS contracts

4 OTHER INCOME

Residence and catering

European funds

Other income generating activities
Other income

5 INVESTMENT INCOME

Other Interest Receivable

Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
11,821 11,442
678 822
535 457
510 1,002
13,544 13,723
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
848 1,051
1,647 1,565
748 775
3,243 3,391
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
260 342
27 196
1,173 1,145
560 208
2,020 1,891
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
1 1
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6

STAFF COSTS

The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the college

d

uring the period was:

Teaching departments

Teaching support services
Administration

Premises

Catering and residences

Other Income-generating activities
Other staff

Analysed as:
Staff on permanent contracts
Staff on temporary contracts

Staff Costs for the above persons

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Restructuring costs

Analysed as:
Staff on permanent contracts
Staff on temporary contracts

Pension charge less contributions paid

Restructuring costs

Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
FTE FTE
161 170
35 32

42 40

18 24

6 9

18 18

2 3

282 296
272 274
10 22
282 296
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
10,310 9,926
955 921
3,418 2,739
99 40
14,782 13,626
12,696 11,375
477 1,054
1,510 1,157
99 40
14,782 13,626
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Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £000
Analysed as:
Teaching departments 8,190 7,656
Teaching support services 1,125 1,051
Administration 1,714 1,676
Premises 686 660
Catering and residences 204 201
Other income-generating activities 777 762
Other staff 477 423
Pension charge less contributions paid 1,510 1,157
Restructuring costs 99 40
14,782 13,626
Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the college and are represented by the
Senior Team which comprises the Principal and two Vice Principals.
Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher
paid staff
2020 2019
No. No.
The number of key management personnel including
the Accounting Officer was: 3 4
The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual
emoluments, excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind, in the following
ranges was:
Key management personnel Other staff
2020 2019 2020 2019
No. No. No. No.
£70,001 to £80,000 2 3 - -
£110,001 to £120,000 1 1 - -
3 4 - -
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Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows:

2020 2019
£°000 £000
Salaries 255 322
Benefits in kind - R
255 322
Pension contributions 50 57
Total emoluments 305 379

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any
salary sacrifice arrangements in place. The above emoluments include amounts payable to the
Accounting officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of:

2020 2019
£°000 £000
Salaries 107 105
Benefits in kind - -
107 105
Pension contributions 21 20
Total emoluments 128 125

Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel

2020 2019
£000 £000
Compensation paid to former post-holders - 23
Estimated value of other benefits, including provision for - -
pension benefits

Overseas Activities

There were no costs incurred during 2019-20 in respect of overseas activities, which were
carried out in accordance with the strategy approved by the board of governors.
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7 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Teaching departments

Teaching support services
Administration

Premises

Catering

Other income generating activities
Overspend on student support funds
Childcare fund costs

Other

Other Operating Expenses (Administration)
include:

Auditors Remuneration (including irrecoverable
VAT)

- Internal audit

- External audit
Other services provided by:

- Internal audit

- External audit

8 INTEREST PAYABLE

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans
Pension finance costs

9 TAXATION

Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
834 732
216 360
1,419 1,568
806 1,118
134 176
391 415

- 4

678 822
137 555
4,615 5,750
22 22

15 15

- 10

37 47
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000
241 194
241 194

The Board does not believe the college was liable for any corporation tax arising out of its activities

during this period.
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10 FIXED ASSETS

Land & Fixed Plant Equipment Total
Buildings
Freehold
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000

Cost or valuation
At 31 July 2019 18,209 1,785 66 20,060
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
On Revaluation 330 25 - 355
At 31 July 2020 18,539 1,810 66 20,415
Depreciation
At 31 July 2019 1,571 370 46 1,987
Charge for Period 571 185 13 769
Disposals - - - -
On Revaluation (1,578) (555) - (2,133)
At 31 July 2020 564 - 59 623
Net Book Value
At 31 July 2020 17,975 1,810 7 19,792
Net Book Value
At 31 July 2019 16,638 1,415 20 18,073
Financed by: 17,975 1,810 7 19,792
Capital Grant

The college’s land and buildings were independently valued by GVA James Barr as at 31 July
2020. This valuation has been incorporated into these financial statements. Under FRS102 the
Board gives annual consideration to assessing the value of buildings and equipment to be
included in the annual accounts. The basis of valuation adopted was depreciated replacement
cost. Had they not been re-valued, inherited and owned land, buildings and fixed plant would have
had an historic net book value of £16,816,000 (2019: £16,592,000).

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECOVERABLES

Trade Debtors

European Funding

Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts Owed by SFC

Year Year

Ended Ended

31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £°000

419 586

- 25

976 509

49 49

1,444 1,169
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12 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £000
Trade Creditors 289 654
Taxation and Social Security 450 518
Accruals and Deferred income 1,838 876
Deferred Income — Deferred capital grant < 1 Year 410 457
Deferred Income — SFC capital grants 12 12
Deferred Income — SFC revenue grants 183 68
Amounts Owed to SFC 158 158
Unspent Student Funds 18 a7
3,358 2,790
13 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after one year
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £000
Amounts Owed to SFC 2,053 2,211
Deferred Income — SFC Capital grants 11,362 11,849
13,415 14,060
14 MATURITY OF DEBT
SFC Loan is repayable as follows:
Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £000
In one year or less 158 158
Between one and two years - 158
Between two and five years - 632
In five years or more 2,053 1,421
2,211 2,369

The college voluntarily terminated its PFI contract in April 2007, at which point the title of the
college buildings transferred to the college. The college received total funding from SFC in April
2007 of £27.7million to enable it to terminate the contract. This comprised a grant of £22.16million
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and a repayable advance of £5.54million representing the college’s own contribution towards the
cost of the assets previously held under the PFI contract.

The £5.54million advance is interest free and was repayable in equal instalments over 16 years.
The first repayment was made in August 2010 and at 31 July 2019 the amount outstanding was
£2,369,055. In March 2014 the college made an upfront payment of £650,000 towards the loan
and negotiated a reduced annual payment of £157,937 per annum with the Scottish Funding
Council from April 2015.

In 2020 the Scottish Funding Council agreed that to the suspension of repayments on the loan

from July 2021 to July 2025 inclusive, recommencing in July 2026. As a result, the loan period
has been extended to July 2039.

15 PROVISIONS

Defined Early Total

Benefit Retirement

Obligations Provision
£°000 £°000 £'000
At 1 August 2019 6,904 3,756 10,660
Expenditure in the period (899) (200) (1,099)
Other movements in period 8,294 250 8,544
At 31 July 2020 14,299 3,806 18,105

Defined benefit obligations relate to liabilities under the college’s membership of the Local
Government pension scheme. Further details are given at Note 18.

The early retirement provision is in accordance with a valuation carried out by Hymans Robertson,
an independent firm of actuaries at 31 July 2020.
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16 RESERVES

Analysis of income and expenditure account

I&E I&E I&E I&E I&E Total
Account = Account | Account Account Account
Trading Holiday PFI Loan Early Defined
Activities Pay Retirement | Benefit
Pension
£'000 £,000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
At 31 July 2019 (148) (174) (2,369) (3,756) (6,904) (13,351)
Total
comprehensive 174 (23) - (250) (7,395) (7,494)
income for the year
(excluding
revaluation)
Transfer from 299 - - - 299
Revaluation
Reserve
Repayments of PFI (158) - 158 - - -
loan
Payments for early (200) - 200 - -
retirement
At 31 July 2020 (33) (297) (2,211) (3,806) (14,299) (20,546)
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
At 1 August At 31 July
2019 @ Cash Flows Other 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash 760 369 - 1,129
Debt due within 1 year (158) 158 (158) (158)
Debt due after 1 year (2,211) - 158 (2,053)
(1,609) 527 - (1,082)
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18 PENSION COMMITMENTS

The college’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Scottish Teachers’
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).

Total pension cost for the period Year Year
Ended Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£°000 £000
STSS contributions paid 1,009 765
LPF Pension scheme:
Contributions paid 899 817
FRS 102 (28) charge 1,510 1,157
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 2,409 1,974
Total Pension Cost for the period within staff 3,418 2,739
costs

Contributions amounting to £158,000 (2019: £151,000) were payable to the schemes at 31 July
and are included within creditors.

Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme

The Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme is a notional fund valued every year by the
Government actuary. Contributions are paid by the college at the rate specified. The Scheme is
unfunded and contributions are made to the Exchequer. The payments from the scheme are
made from funds voted by the Scottish Parliament. The contribution rate payable by the employer
since 1 April 2015 is 17.2% of pensionable salaries. From 1 September 2019 this rate increased
to 23%.

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (28.11) (FRS 102), the STSS is
a multi-employer pension plan. The college is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities of the scheme. Accordingly, the college has taken advantage of its exemption in
FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions as if it were a defined contribution plan. The
college has set out above the information available on the plan and the implications for the college
in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

Lothian Pension Fund Scheme

The Lothian Pension Fund is valued every three years by professionally qualified independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution payable being
determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries. In the intervening years, the LPF
actuary reviews the progress of the LPF scheme.

The Lothian Pension Fund is a funded defined-benefit plan, with assets held in separate funds
administered by City of Edinburgh Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31
July 2020 were £1,178,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £279,000. The agreed
contribution rates for future years for the employer are 18.8% from 1 April 2018, 19.3% from 1
April 2019 and 19.8% from 1 April 2020. For employees, contribution rates range from 5.5% to
12.0% depending on salary.
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Principal Actuarial assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2017
updated to 31 July 2020 by a qualified independent actuary.

At 31 July At 31 July

2020 2019
Rate of increase in salaries 3.9% 4.1%
Future pensions increases 2.2% 2.4%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.4% 2.1%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 3.1% 2.5%
Commutation of pensions — pre April 2009 50% 50%
Commutation of pensions — post April 2009 75% 75%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rate. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Males Females
Current pensioners 21.7 years 24.3 years
Future pensioners 24.7 years 27.5 years
The college’s share of assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return are:

Long term @ Fair Value | Longterm | Fair Value
rate of at rate of at
return 31 July return 31 July

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Equities 1.4% 17,524 2.1% 17,817
Bonds 1.4% 2,536 2.1% 2,613
Property 1.4% 1,614 2.1% 1,663
Cash 1.4% 1,384 2.1% 1,663
Total fair value of employer assets 23,058 23,756
Actual return on employer assets (1,250) 2,160
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is

as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£'000 £'000
Fair value of employer assets 23,058 23,756
Present value of funded liabilities (37,357) (30,660)
Net Pension Liability (14,299) (6,904)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are

as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
£'000 £'000
Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost 2,158 1,581
Past service cost 251 393
Total 2,409 1,974
Amounts included in Pension Costs
Net pension costs 164 94
Total 164 94
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income
Return on pension assets (1,752) 1,565
Change in demographic assumptions - -
Change in financial assumptions (4,117) (4,435)
Other experience 148 -
Total (5,721) (2,870)

Accounts 2020 Page 61




West Lothian College

Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during year Year Year

Ended Ended

31 July 2020 31 July 2019

£000 £000

Net defined benefit (liability) at start of period (6,904) (2,783)
Movement in period:

Current service costs (2,158) (1,581)

Past service costs (251) (393)

Employer contributions 899 817

Net interest on the defined liability (164) (94)

Actuarial (loss)/gain (5,721) (2,870)

Net defined benefit (liability) at end of period (14,299) (6,904)

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Changes in fair value of plan assets Year Year

Ended Ended

31 July 2020 31 July 2019

£000 £000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 23,756 20,917

Interest on plan assets 502 595

Past Service Cost (216) -

Return on plan assets (1,752) 1,565

Employer contributions 899 817

Contributions by plan participants 279 259

Benefits paid (410) (397)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 23,058 23,756

Changes in the present value of defined benefit Year Year

obligations Ended Ended

31 July 2020 31 July 2019

£000 £000

Defined benefit obligation at start of period 30,660 23,700

Current service cost 2,158 1,581

Past service cost 35 393

Interest cost 666 689

Contributions by plan participants 279 259

Changes in demographic assumptions - -

Changes in financial assumptions 4,117 4,435

Other experience (148) -

Benefits paid (410) (397)

Defined benefit obligation at end of period 37,357 30,660
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial Assets

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost totalled £468,000 (2019:
£635,000) at the balance sheet date. This comprises trade debtors and amounts owed by SFC.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost totalled £4,356,000 (2019: £3,946,000) at the
balance sheet date. This comprises trade creditors, accruals, unspent student funds and amounts

owed to SFC.

20 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS

Above SFC annual reporting
requirements

Debt write-off

Cash losses

Ex-gratia payments
Compensation payments

The ex-gratia payments were approved by the Scottish Funding Council.

21 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 July, the college had commitments of a capital nature as follows:

Committed but not contracted
Committed and contracted

22 LEASE OBLIGATIONS

SFC

Requirement 2020 2020
Per Instance Number Total
£3,000 - -
£3,000 - -
£1,000 2 £18,277
£5,000 - -

2020 2019

£000 £000

At 31 July, the college had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:

Other

Expiring within one year
Expiring between one and five years

During 2019-20 the college paid £47,000 in operating lease rentals.

2020 2019
£000 £000
45 36

38 68

83 104
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23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no contingent liabilities at Balance Sheet date.

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of the board of governors
being drawn from local public and private organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take
place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with
the college’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The college had transactions during the year or worked in partnership with the following publicly
funded or representative bodies in which members of the Board of Governors hold or held official
positions.

Name Organisation Position

Mr Alex Linkston NHS Forth Valley Chair

Mr Alex Linkston Colleges Scotland Board Member

Elaine Cook West Lothian Council Depute Chief Executive
2018-19

Name Organisation Position

Mr Thomas Bates Lareine Engineering Ltd Director

Mr Graham Hope

Elaine Cook

West Lothian Council

West Lothian Council

Chief Executive

Depute Chief Executive
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The value of the transactions due to/by the college for the twelve months ended 31 July 2020,
and the amount outstanding at this date was as follows:

Organisation Year ended 31 July 2020 Year ended 31 July 2019
Total Value of Balance Total Value of Balance
Transactions = Outstanding Transactions Outstanding

£000 £000 £000 £000

Due to WLC

Lareine Engineering Ltd - - 1 -

West Lothian Council 57 - 42 32

NHS Forth Valley 1 - - -

Due by WLC

Colleges Scotland 27 - 26 -

West Lothian Council 425 - 103 11

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £431 ; 2 governors
(2019: £473 ; 4 governors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of
pocket expenses in attending Governor meetings and other events in their official capacity.

The Chair of the Board received a salary in accordance with the directions issued by the Scottish
Government. The total paid to the Chair over the period was £23,123 (2019: £22,498)

25 FE BURSARIES AND OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS

FE FE 2019-20 2018-19
Bursary Discry EMAs Other Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance b/fwd 47 - (22) - 25 (15)
Allocations 2,944 439 195 123 3,701 3,364
received in year
Expenditure (2,859) (599) (195) (123) (3,776) (3,194)
Repaid to SFC 47) - - - (47) (40)
College - - - - - 4
contribution
Virements (65) 160 - - 95 (94)
Balance c/fwd 20 - (22) - (2) (27)

Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor / (debtor) are included in the balance
sheet. FE Bursaries and Student Support Funds are available solely for students; the college
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acts only as paying agent. The grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from

the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

26 CHILDCARE FUNDS

2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000

Balance b/fwd - -
Allocations received in year 774 728
Expenditure (679) (822)
College contribution - -
Virements (95) 94
Balance c/fwd - -

Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor are included in the balance sheet.
Childcare Funds are reported gross in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There have been no significant post balance sheet events.
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28 IMPACT OF DEPRECIATION BUDGET ON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

Following reclassification, colleges received a non-cash budget to cover depreciation but this
additional budget is not recognised under the FE/HE SORP accounting rules. Colleges may

show a deficit equivalent to net depreciation as a result of having to meet Government

accounting rules and the requirement to spend the entire cash allocation.

Under the FE/HE SORP, the college recorded an operating deficit of £1,703,000 for the year
ended 31 July 2020. After adjusting for the non-cash allocation provided under government
rules, the college shows an ‘adjusted’ deficit of £1,513,000 on a Central Government basis.

accounting basis for academic year

2019-20 2018-19
£000 £000

Deficit before other gains and losses (FE/HE (1,599) (1,351)
SORP basis) for academic year
Add: Depreciation budget for government funded 190 190
assets (net of deferred capital grant) for academic
year
Operating deficit on Central Government (1,409) (1,161)

The deficit is attributable to other factors reflected in the adjusted operating table (see page 16)

and the college is therefore operating sustainably within its funding allocation.
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APPENDIX 1
Accounts Direction

The following note is taken from the 2019-20 SFC Accounts Directions and has been
included as required by SFC. It does not form part of the Financial Statements.

2019-20 Accounts direction for Scotland’s Colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional
Board

Accounts direction for Scotland’s Colleges 2019-20

1. Itis the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that institutions1 comply with the 2019
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education
(SORP) in preparing their annual report and accounts?2.

2. Institutions must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their annual
report and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish
Funding Council (SFC) or the Regional Strategic Body (RSB) (for assigned colleges).

3. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are also required to
comply with the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2019-20 (FReM) where
applicable.

4. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are reminded that they
must send two copies of their annual report and accounts to the Auditor General for
Scotland by 31 December 2020.

5. The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief executive officer /
Executive Director and by the Chair, or one other member of the governing body.

6. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board should reproduce this
Direction as an appendix to the annual report and accounts.

Scottish Funding Council
17 July 2020
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